
1 
 

Is-bwyllgor Trwyddedu Tacsis 
 

Man Cyfarfod 
By Teams 

 

 
 

Neuadd Y Sir 
Llandrindod 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod 
Dydd Mercher, 3 Chwefror 2021 

 
Amser y Cyfarfod 
11.15 am 

 
I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch â 
Carol Johnson 
01597 826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 Dyddiad Cyhoeddi 
 

 

Mae croeso i’r rhai sy’n cymryd rhan ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg. Os hoffech chi siarad 
Cymraeg yn y cyfarfod, gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i ni erbyn hanner dydd ddau 
ddiwrnod cyn y cyfarfod 

 

AGENDA 

 

Gofynnir i Aelodau'r Is-Bwyllgor i fynychu cyfarfod briffio preifat am 11.00 a.m. 
 

 

1.  CYNNIG I WAHARDD Y CYHOEDD A'R WASG  

 
Mae'r Swyddog Monitro wedi penderfynu bod Categoriau 1 a 2, Rheolau Mynediad 
at Wybodaeth, yn berthnasol i'r eitemau canlynol.  Ei farn o ran prawf lles y cyhoedd 
(wedi ystyried darpariaethau Rheol 14.8, Rheolau Mynediad at Wybodaeth y 
Cyngor), oedd y byddai gwneud y wybodaeth hon yn gyhoeddus yn datgelu 
gwybodaeth yn ymwneud â: 
 

(i)              gwybodaeth yn ymwneud ag unrhyw unigolyn 

(ii)             gwybodaeth sy’n debygol o ddatgelu pwy yw’r unigolyn 

 
 
Roedd y ffactorau hyn yn ei farn ef yn bwysicach na diddordeb y cyhoedd wrth 
ddatgelu'r wybodaeth hon. Gofynnir i Aelodau ystyried y ffactorau hyn wrth 
benderfynu ar brawf lles y cyhoedd, a dylent benderfynu hyn wrth iddynt ystyried 
eithrio'r cyhoedd o'r rhan hon o'r cyfarfod. 
 
 

2.  CAIS AM DRWYDDED GYRRWR CERBYD HACNI A LLOGI PREIFAT  

 
 
 

2.1.  Gweithdrefnau Is-bwyllgorau 

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



 Derbyn cyflwyniadau gan y Cadeirydd ac esboniad gweithdrefnau’r Is-
Bwyllgor gan y Clerc i’r Is-Bwyllgor [Prif Gyfreithiwr]. 
 
 
 

2.2.  Cais am drwydded 

 Ystyried cais am Drwydded ar y Cyd Cerbyd Hacni a Gyrrwyr Llogi Preifat 
-  JD/01/2021 
(Tudalennau 1 - 16) 
 
 

 
 



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 1

2.2
Trwy rinwedd paragraff(au) 12, 13 Rhan 1 Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Document is Restricted

Tudalen 5

Trwy rinwedd paragraff(au) 12, 13 Rhan 1 Atodlen 12A
Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



L - 2007.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

           ANNEX B 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

GUIDANCE ON DETERMINING THE SUITABILITY OF 
APPLICANTS AND LICENSEES IN THE HACKNEY AND 

PRIVATE HIRE TRADES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Council Offices Council Offices Council Offices 

Neuadd Brycheiniog Y Gwalia Neuadd Maldwyn 

Cambrian Way Ithon Road Severn Road 

Brecon Llandrindod Wells Welshpool 

Powys Powys Powys 

LD3 7HR LD1 6AA SY21 7AS 

 

Tudalen 7



 
 
 
Amendment Record 
 
 

ISSUE DATE APPROVED SUMMARY OF CHANGE 
 
1 
 
 
 
2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3 
 
 
 
 
 
4 
 
 
 
5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
8th December 
2005 
 
 
 
25th June 2007 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2nd August 2012 
 
 
 
 
 
16th July 2014 
 
 
 
6th December 
2018 

 
 Licensing 
Committee 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Taxi Licensing 
Committee 

 
 
 
 
 
Service name updated 
Recognition of fixed penalty notices & anti 
social behaviour 
Inclusion of simple and conditional cautions 
and charges pending 
Minor amendments to text to clarify meaning or 
broaden scope 
Inclusion of overseas residents 
 
Significant additions made further to 
consideration of the template policy produced 
by LACORS in September 2010 
 
 
 
All Wales Licensing Expert Panel policy 
approved by Full Council 
 
 
IOL document ‘Guidance on determining the 
suitability of licensees in the hackney and 
private hire trades document used as basis for 
revised document 

Prepared by: S. Jones  Approved by: Licensing Committee 
 
          Issue No 5 

 

 

Tudalen 8



GUIDANCE ON DETERMINING THE SUITABILITY OF 
APPLICANTS AND LICENSEES IN THE HACKNEY AND 

PRIVATE HIRE TRADES  

 
 
1.0 Introduction 

 
1.1 The purpose of this document is to provide guidance on the criteria taken 

into account by the council when determining whether or not an applicant or 
an existing licence holder is a fit and proper or safe and suitable person to 
hold a licence. 
 

1.2 The purpose of hackney carriage and private hire licensing is to protect and 
ensure the safety of the travelling public; there are many instances where an 
application will be refused, or a licence or revoked or suspended if the person 
falls short of the fit and proper test. Case law makes it clear that the impact of 
losing (or not being granted) a driver’s licence on the applicant and his family is 
not a consideration to be taken into account. 

 
1.3 The Licensing Authority makes decisions on the balance of probabilities rather than 

beyond reasonable doubt. 
 
1.4 It is recognised that these guidelines are not legislation, it is however, the Authority’s 

baseline for acceptability. As such, it will only be departed from in exceptional 
circumstances and for justifiable reasons which should be recorded. 

 
1.5 Where licensing officers have delegated powers to grant licences, they will 

utilise these guidelines when making a decision to grant a licence. In all 
other cases applications for licences will be referred to the licensing 
committee/panel (or other relevant decision-making body).  

 
2.0 Powers 
 
2.1 Powers to grant driver / operator licences are contained within Section 51, 

Section 55 and Section 59 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 (the Act).  

 
2.2 Powers to suspend, revoke or refuse to renew a driver’s licence are 

contained within Section 61 of the Act, where the applicant/licence holder 
has been convicted of an offence involving dishonesty, indecency, violence; 
failure to comply with the provisions of the Town Police Clauses Act 1847; 
failure to comply with the provisions of Part II of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976; or any other reasonable cause. 

 
2.3 Section 61 (2B) allows the Licensing Authority, if it appears that in the 

interests of public safety, to suspend or revoke a driver’s licence with 
immediate effect.  A Decision Notice explaining why this decision has been 
taken will be issued to the driver and will have effect when the notice is 

Tudalen 9



given to the driver.  The driver may appeal this decision but may not drive 
during the appeal period. 
 

2.4 Section 62 of the Act allows the Licensing Authority to suspend, revoke or 
refuse to renew an operator’s licence if the applicant/licence holder has 
been convicted of an offence under or non-compliance with the provisions 
of Part II of the Act; or grounds of any conduct on the part of the operator 
which appears to the Council to render him unfit , or due to any material 
change since the licence was granted in any of the circumstances of the 
operator on the basis of which the licence was granted or any other 
reasonable cause.  

 
2.5 The Rehabilitation of Offenders Act 1974 (Exceptions)(Amendment) Order 

2002, allows the Licensing Authority to take into account all convictions 
recorded against an applicant or the holder of a private hire vehicle or 
hackney carriage driver’s licence, whether spent or not. Therefore the 
Licensing Authority will have regard to all relevant convictions, particularly 
where there is a long history of offending or a recent pattern of repeat 
offending.  

 
3.0 Appeals 
 
3.1 Any applicant who has been refused a driver / operator licence, or a 

licensed driver / operator whose licence has been suspended or revoked 
has a right to appeal to the Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of receipt of 
the notice. 

 
 
4.0 Considerations 
 
 
4.4 One common misunderstanding is that if the offence was not committed when 

the driver was driving a taxi, it is much less serious, or even if it was in a taxi 
but not when passengers were aboard. This is not relevant: speeding is 
dangerous, irrespective of the situation; drink driving is dangerous, irrespective 
of the situation; bald tyres are dangerous, irrespective of the situation. All these 
behaviours put the general public at risk. Violence is always serious. The 
argument that it was a domestic dispute, or away from the taxi, is irrelevant. A 
person who has a propensity to violence has that potential in every situation. 
Sexual offences are always serious. A person who has in the past abused their 
position (whatever that may have been) to assault another sexually has 
demonstrated completely unacceptable standards of behaviour. 

 
4.5 Applicants may claim that they have sought employment in other fields and 

been precluded as a result of their antecedent history particularly if that contains 
convictions. They therefore seek to become a licensed driver as an occupation 
of last resort. This is unacceptable as the granting of a licence would place such 
a person in a unique position of trust. The paramount responsibility of a 
licensing authority is to protect the public, not provide employment 
opportunities. 

Tudalen 10



 
4.6 Licensees are expected to demonstrate appropriate professional conduct at 

all time, whether in the context of their work or otherwise. Licensees should 
be courteous, avoid confrontation, not be abusive or exhibit prejudice in any 
way. In no circumstances should Licensees take the law into their own hands. 
Licensees are expected to act with integrity and demonstrate conduct befitting 
the trust that is placed in them. 

 
5.0 Guidance on Determination 
 
5.1 There are 5 types of licence: hackney carriage vehicle; private hire vehicle; 

hackney carriage driver, private hire driver (this authority adopts a dual badge 
for drivers that permits them to drive a private hire vehicle and a hackney 
carriage vehicle) and private hire operator. In relation to all of these licences, 
the authority has the discretion to grant, revoke and suspend a licence. 

 
5.2  Drivers and operators cannot be granted a licence unless the authority is 

satisfied that they are a “fit and proper person” to hold that licence (see Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 ss 51 and 59 in respect of 
drivers; s55 in respect of operators). 

 
5.3 There are no statutory criteria for vehicle licences, therefore the authority has 

an absolute discretion over whether to grant either a hackney carriage or private 
hire proprietor’s licence. 

 
5.4 “Fit and proper” means that the individual (or in the case of a private hire 

operator’s licence, the limited company together with its directors and secretary, 
or all members of a partnership) is “safe and suitable” to hold the licence. 

 
5.5 In determining safety and suitability the licensing authority is entitled to take into 

account all matters concerning that applicant or licensee. They are not simply 
concerned with that person’s behaviour whilst working in the hackney carriage 
or private hire trade. This consideration is far wider than simply criminal 
convictions or other evidence of unacceptable behaviour, and the entire 
character of the individual will be considered. This can include, but is not limited 
to, the individual’s attitude and temperament. 

 
 
 5.6 Convictions for attempt or conspiracy will be regarded as convictions for the 

substantive crime. A caution is regarded in exactly the same way as a 
conviction. Fixed penalties and community resolutions will also be considered 
in the same way as a conviction. 

 
5.7 It is important to recognise that matters which have not resulted in a criminal 

conviction (whether that is the result of an acquittal, a conviction being quashed, 
decision not to prosecute or an investigation which is continuing where the 
individual has been bailed) can and will be taken into account by the licensing 
authority. In addition, complaints where there was no police involvement will 
also be considered. Within this document, any reference to “conviction" will also 
include matters that amount to criminal behaviour, but which have not resulted 

Tudalen 11



in a conviction. 
 
5.8 In the case of any new applicant who has been charged with any offence and 

is awaiting trial, the determination will be deferred until the trial has been 
completed or the charges withdrawn. Where an existing licensee is charged, it 
will be for the licensing authority to decide what action to take in the light of 
these guidelines. 

 
5.9 In all cases, the licensing authority will consider the conviction or behaviour in 

question and what weight should be attached to it, and each and every case 
will be determined on its own merits, and in the light of these guidelines. 

 
 5.10 Any offences committed, or unacceptable behaviour reported whilst driving a 

hackney carriage or private hire vehicle, concerning the use of a hackney 
carriage or private hire vehicle, or in connection with an operator of a private 
hire vehicle will be viewed as aggravating features, and the fact that any other 
offences were not connected with the hackney carriage and private hire trades 
will not be seen as mitigating factors. 

 
5.11 As the licensing authority will be looking at the entirety of the individual, in many 

cases safety and suitability will not be determined by a specified period of time 
having elapsed following a conviction or the completion of a sentence. Time 
periods are relevant and weighty considerations, but they are not the only 
determining factor. 

 
5.12 In addition to the nature of the offence or other behaviour, the quantity of 

matters and the period over which they were committed will also be considered. 
Patterns of repeated unacceptable or criminal behaviour are likely to cause 
greater concern than isolated occurrences as such patterns can demonstrate a 
propensity for such behaviour or offending. 

 
 5.13 Most applicants or licensees will have no convictions and that is clearly the ideal 

situation. In relation to other people, it is accepted that human beings do make 
mistakes and lapse in their conduct for a variety of reasons, and it is further 
accepted that many learn from experience and do not go on to commit further 
offences. Accordingly, in many cases an isolated conviction, especially if 
committed some time ago, may not prevent the grant or renewal of a licence. 

 
5.14 It is also important to recognise that once a licence has been granted, there is 

a continuing requirement on the part of the licensee to maintain their safety and 
suitability. The licensing authority has powers to take action against the holder 
of all types of licence (driver’s, vehicle and operator’s) and it must be 
understood that any convictions or other actions on the part of the licensee 
which would have prevented them being granted a licence on initial application 
will lead to that licence being revoked. 

 
 5.16 Any dishonesty by any applicant or other person on the applicant’s behalf which 

is discovered to have occurred in any part of any application process (e.g. 
failure to declare convictions, false names or addresses, falsified references) 
will result in a licence being refused, or if already granted, revoked and may 

Tudalen 12



result in prosecution. 
 
5.17 As the direct impact on the public varies depending upon the type of licence 

applied for or held, it is necessary to consider the impact of particular offences 
on those licences separately. However, there are some overriding 
considerations which will apply in all circumstances. 

 
5.18 Generally, where a person has more than one conviction, this will raise serious 

questions about their safety and suitability. The licensing authority is looking for 
safe and suitable individuals, and once a pattern or trend of repeated offending 
is apparent, a licence will not be granted or renewed. 

 
5.19 Where an applicant/licensee is convicted of an offence which is not detailed in 

this guidance, the licensing authority will take that conviction into account and 
use these guidelines as an indication of the approach that should be taken. 

 
5.20 These guidelines do not replace the duty of the licensing authority to refuse to 

grant a licence where they are not satisfied that the applicant or licensee is a fit 
and proper person. Where a situation is not covered by these guidelines, the 
authority must consider the matter from first principles and determine the fitness 
and propriety of the individual. 

 
5.21 New applications together with reviews of licences will be 

determined in line with the principles set out below. New applications will 
either be granted or refused. Reviews of licences can result the issuing of 
a warning, no further action or the suspension/revocation of the licence. 

 
Drivers 
 
5.22 As the criteria for determining whether an individual should be granted or retain 

a hackney carriage driver’s licence are identical to the criteria for a private hire 
driver’s licence, the two are considered together. 

 
5.23 A driver has direct responsibility for the safety of their passengers, direct 

responsibility for the safety of other road users and significant control over 
passengers who are in the vehicle. As those passengers may be alone, and 
may also be vulnerable, any previous convictions or unacceptable behaviour 
will weigh heavily against a licence being granted or retained. 

 
5.24 As stated above, where an applicant has more than one conviction showing a 

pattern or tendency irrespective of time since the convictions, serious 
consideration will need to be given as to whether they are a safe and suitable 
person. 

 
5.25 In relation to single convictions, the following time periods should elapse 

following completion of the sentence (or the date of conviction if a fine was 
imposed) before a licence will be granted. 

 
5.26 Crimes resulting in death 

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime which resulted 

Tudalen 13



in the death of another person or was intended to cause the death or serious 
injury of another person they will not be licensed. 

 
5.27 Exploitation 

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related 
to, or has any connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another 
individual irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults or children, 
they will not be licensed. This includes slavery, child sexual exploitation, 
grooming, psychological, emotional or financial abuse, but this is not an 
exhaustive list. 

 
5.28 Offences involving violence 

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence, or connected 
with any offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years 
have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. 

 
5.29 Possession of a weapon 

Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other 
weapon related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have 
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. 

 
5.30 Sex and indecency offences 

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with 
illegal sexual activity or any form of indecency, a licence will not be granted. 

 
In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any 
applicant who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any ‘barred’ list. 

 
5.31 Dishonesty 

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence of dishonesty, or any 
offence where dishonesty is an element of the offence, a licence will not be 
granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any 
sentence imposed. 

 
5.32 Drugs 

Where an applicant has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or 
possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to 
supply, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since 
the completion of any sentence imposed. 
 
Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the 
possession of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have 
elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. In these 
circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at their 
own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. 

 
5.33 Discrimination 

Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination 
in any form, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed 
since the completion of any sentence imposed. 

Tudalen 14



 
5.34 Motoring convictions 

Hackney carriage and private hire drivers are professional drivers charged with 
the responsibility of carrying the public. Any motoring conviction demonstrates 
a lack of professionalism and will be considered seriously. It is accepted that 
offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor 
traffic offence would not prohibit the grant of a licence or may not result in action 
against an existing licence. Subsequent convictions reinforce the fact that the 
licensee does not take their professional responsibilities seriously and is 
therefore, not a safe and suitable person to be granted or retain a licence. 

 
5.35 Drink driving / driving under the influence of drugs / using a hand-held 

telephone or hand held device whilst driving 
 
Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the 
influence of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have 
elapsed since the completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed. In these 
circumstances, any applicant will also have to undergo drugs testing at their 
own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs. 

Where an applicant has a conviction for using a hand‐held mobile telephone or a 

hand‐held device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 

years have elapsed since the conviction or completion of any sentence or 
driving ban imposed, whichever is the later. 

 
5.36 Other motoring offences 
  A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is one which does not involve loss of 

life, driving under the influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a mobile 
phone, and has not resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property 
(including vehicles). Where an applicant has 7 or more points on their DVLA 
licence for minor traffic or similar offences, a licence will not be granted until at 
least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. 

 
A major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered above and 
also any offence which resulted in injury to any person or damage to any 
property (including vehicles). It also includes driving without insurance or any 
offence connected with motor insurance. Where an applicant has a conviction 
for a major traffic offence or similar offence, a licence will not be granted until 
at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. 

 
5.37 Hackney carriage and private hire offences 

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence concerned with or 
connected to hackney carriage or private hire activity (excluding vehicle use), 
a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the 
completion of any sentence imposed. 

 
5.38 Vehicle use offences 

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence which involved the use of 
a vehicle (including hackney carriages and private hire vehicles), a licence will 
not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any 

Tudalen 15



sentence imposed. 
 
5.39 Private Hire Operators 

A private hire operator (“an operator”) does not have direct responsibility for the 
safety of passengers, other road users or direct contact with passengers who 
are in the private hire vehicle (except where they are also licensed as a private 
hire driver). However, in performing their duties they obtain and hold 
considerable amounts of personal and private information about their 
passengers which must be treated in confidence and not revealed to others, or 
used by the operator or their staff for criminal or other unacceptable purposes. 

 
As stated above, where an applicant has more than one conviction, serious 
consideration will need to be given as to whether they are a safe and suitable 
person. 
 
Operators must ensure that any staff that are used within the business (whether 
employees or independent contractors) and are able to access any information 
as described above are subject to the same standards as the operator 
themselves. This can be effected by means of the individual staff member being 
required by the operator to obtain a basic DBS certificate. If an operator is 
found not to be applying the required standards and using staff that do not meet 
the licensing authority’s overall criteria, that will lead to the operator’s licence 
being revoked. 
 
As public trust and confidence in the overall safety and integrity of the private 
hire system is vital, the same standards will be applied to operators as those 
applied to drivers, which are outlined above. 

 
5.40 Vehicle Proprietors 

Vehicle proprietors (both hackney carriage and private hire) have two principal 
responsibilities. 
 
Firstly, they must ensure that the vehicle is maintained to an acceptable 
standard at all times. 
Secondly, they must ensure that the vehicle is not used for illegal or illicit 
purposes. 
 
As stated above, where an applicant has more than one conviction, serious 
consideration will need to be given as to whether they are a safe and suitable 
person to be granted or retain a vehicle licence. 
 
As public trust and confidence in the overall safety and integrity of the private 
hire system is vital, the same standards will be applied to proprietors as those 
applied to drivers, which are outlined above. 
 

Tudalen 16


	Agenda
	2.2 Cais am drwydded
	Application Form - JD.01.2021
	Revised Convictions Policy Dec 2018


